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The Branner-Hicks Home was built in the mid-1850's by Colonel Benjamin
Manassah Branner. It was built at a time when Federal style (Greek Revival
homes were traditionally popular in the East Tennessee area; however, the

architect (unknown) chose varied elements of Gothic Revival and Romanesque |

Revival design in his plans for the home. The Tocation of this two-story
residence was easily accessible in the mid-nineteenth century as it was
situated on Chucky Bend Road near the intersections of the Knoxville and
Morristown Pike and the Nashville and Chattanooga Railroad. The area was

then known as Mossy Creek; it has since become named Jefferson City,
Tennessee.

An extended brick walkway traverses the simplistically landscaped lawn
through a row of boxwoods. The landing outside the front door is made of
square bricks (it was also used between the interior and exterior regular
brick of the walls); Branner's servants used the clay from the sideyard in
making brick - a depressed area still bears witness to this use of the
native soil. The entrance forms a Drop Arch leading into the interior hall

- which 1ike the front door and its casing is red walnut. Above the front
door at the second story is a small portico rimmed with a wrought iron

. railing; narrow double Romanesque arches frame the windows which provide
access to the portico. The original shape of the house might be described

" as a "zig-zag," that is, the central portion was joined by two wings, one
to the rear and one to the front. A bay window was projected from the fron
wing which formed the sitting room (it is now the Tiving room). The sittin
room was joined to the rear by the dining room. Originally, a porch ran
the length of this wing on the side of the house; the porch, facing west,
served as a shade to the afternoon sun and provided an outdoor room for
many years for the home's occupants. The kitchen facilities were completel
separate and were located in a two story brick "cottage" beyond the dining
room; the second story of this structure was probably the servant quarters.
A brick smokehouse in the rear yard is the most prominent outbuilding. The
eaves of the Branner Home are of simplistic lines whitewashed and bracketed
along the entire roofline. Three sizable chimneys protrude like castle
turrets on each section of the home.

The interior is particularly significant as the woodwork is unusually
refined for a home of East Tennessee of this era. The doors and window
frames, central hall and spiraled stairway are of red walnut; the trim and
mantels of the parlor (now a dining room) are of black walnut; the fore-

mentioned sitting room with its handsome bay window was completed in cherryj

and the original dining room was trimmed in oak. Obviously, borrowing from
“ the Empire styling which was popularized through Egyptian excavation at
the time, the casings of the door and window frames were tapered from botto
to top throughout the home. In recent years, the present owner has com-
pletely restored the woodwork throughout the house, wallpapered in Empire
designs, and internally placed utilities (previously they were exposed).
The plaster medallions which are centered on the ceiling above the
chandeliers (added in recent years) are original and of Arabesque design.
Changes to the home have been minimal. The kitchen has been joined to the
house by a breezeway; a rear porch has been partially enclosed; and the
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side porch has been removed.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The property on which the Branner Home was built was originally owned by
George Branner who came to Mossy Creek (now Jefferson City) around 1830.
George Branner was a local farmer who owned over 2,000 acres and fathered
eleven children. One of his sons, Benjamin Manassah Branner, acquired
much of his farm from his father's estate. He built his home on the same
site where his father's house had burned. Benjamin Branner was a farmer
and merchant, operating his business with James T. Johnson in Mossy Creek.

 He married in 1851 and built the Branner Home in the ensuing years.
Branner entered the Confederate Army as a captain in 1861 and eventually
rose to the rank of Lieutenant-Colonel and commanded the Fourth Battalion
of Tennessee Cavalry. He also served with Cook's Light Dragoons in
Kentucky. In 1864, Branner went to Atlanta as East Tennessee was becoming
more under the sphere of Unionists; there he operated a partnership in a
hotel. After the war, he returned to his home in Mossy Creek.

The Branner Home is referred to in two accounts of the battle of Mossy
Creek in late December of 1863. Colonel William J. Palmer, Fifteenth
Pennsylvania Cavalry, deployed his forces around the home on December 30,
1863, and engaged Confederate forces in the surrounding area.

The Gothic Revival style was not prominent in East Tennessee prior to the
Civil War. Most homes of the Tennessee Valley were typically of Greek
Revival design (often referred to as "Federal" in Tennessee). The Branner
Home is an outstanding example both exteriorly and interiorly of the
Gothic Revival Period. It also displays elements such as the Roman arch
windows above the front door and the bracketed roof line which became in-
creasingly popular and more elaborate as the Victorian era matured. The
home stands as a significant example depicting the transition from Federal
style architecture to the Victorian Ornamentatig in East Tennessee.
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